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The Greene Inn, a Shingle Style structure erected in 1887-88 and
designed by William Gibbons Preston of Beston, stands at the northwest
corner of Ocean Road and South Pier Road, not more than fifty yards
from the Atlantic shore. It is set on a sloping half-acre lot facing
east, with a small stone-walled lawn terrace in front. The main section
of the building is three and one-half stories tall, roughly H-shaped
in plan, with longitudinal axis running north-south. Plain wooden
shingles now cover all wall surfaces, but originally there were areas
of wavy-and-scallop patterned shingle in the peaks of the south and
northeast gables, and a band of scalloped shingles across the south
facade between the second and third floor levels. Most of the main
block is covered by a complex mass of intersecting gambrel roofs with
hipped and gabled dormers. Its southeastern portion, though equal in
height to the rest of the block, is treated as a semi-octagonal tower
with hipped roof and fieldstone wallcover up to the sills of the first
floor windows. A decorative band of stucco once ran around this tower
between the second and third floor levels, but it was removed some
time in the 1960's. An L-shaped verandah runs along the east side of
the building with one wing, now glazed in, extending out from the north-
east leg of the "H". This extension is a later addition. Originally
the second story, supported by large shingled brackets, projected
slightly over a bowed first floor front at this point. The third story
of this leg projects over the second and is supported by a row of
corbels. A massive stone chimney at the center of the east front has a
large wrought iron "G" affixed to it. On the south side of the build-
ing a shed-roofed porte-cochere with pediment-like cross gable extends
over the sidewalk, and a small shed-roofed porch shelters a door at
the western end of this facade.

A two and one-half-story shingled service wing with cross-gabled
roof is attached to the northwest corner of the '"H" block. This wing
is a remnant of the old Southern Hotel (a summer boarding house Qf the
1850's demolished to make way for the present structure), retained for
use as a kitchen, laundry, and employees' quarters. A one-story glazed
passageway runs ‘along the south side of this service wing and the west
side of the main block.

Inside, the first floor is occupied by the various public function
rooms commonly found in nineteenth-century hotels. Their interiors are
largely intact. Entering through the porte-cochére on the south side
of the building, one passes through a tiny vestibule into a twenty-five-
foot square hall. The southeast corner of the hall is taken up by a
huge fieldstone chimney breast. This chimney breast contains a fire-
place with a slate panel over the mantel in which the motto '"Shall I
not take mine Ease in mine Inn?" is carved in gothic lettering. Next
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to the fireplace a door opens into an octagonal solarium. A wooden
quarter-turn staircase leading to the second floor runs up from the
corner opposite the fireplace. Next to it stands a paneled wood and
.glass telephone booth in the Queen Anne style. The southwest corner

of the hall contains a curved registration desk with a small private
office behind it, and two doors open off the northeast corner of this
room: one (a double door) out onto the verandah, the other into two
parlors arranged en suite. The walls are covered by a dark wooden dado
of beaded vertical boards below figured wallpaper of the 1915-20 period.
Four dark wood-cased beams run across the ceiling, oriented perpendic-
ular and paralled to the angled corner fireplace, while another,
supported by two octagonal piers, runs across the staircase and the
registration desk at the west side of the room.

Between the registration desk and the staircase is a short passage
leading to a rectangular room about fifteen by twenty-seven feet. This
was originally the billiard room, but was later used as part of a cock-
tail lounge extending through the three rooms along the rear (west side)
of the building. The billiard room has a dark wooden dado with wall-
paper above; the southern half of the east wall is taken up by a large
cupboard with glass doors. To the north of this room is another of
about equal size, part of the glazed passageway which links the main
block to the service wing. Off the east side of this room, under the
staircase, 1s the entrance to a men's room.

The solarium off the southeast corner of the hall is set in the
base of the tower. It has large Queen Anne windows overlooking the
Atlantic Ocean and a massive chimney breast of fieldstone and beach
cobble with a fireplace set under an arched recess. Doors open out
onto the porte-cochére and the verandah, and a row of bookcases runs
around the room beneath the windows. The walls are painted.

The parlors off the north end of the hall vary in size and decora-
tive treatment. The one adjacent to the hall is about twelve by seven-
teen feet and has a fireplace with Colonial Revival mantel in the
northeast corner. A shallow bay with double window and a window seat
takes up the east wall. A hexagonal display cabinet with Queen Anne-
style glass doors pierces the wall opposite the fireplace and is visi-
ble from both this room and the hall. The second parlor, to the north,
is about fifteen by twenty feet and has a fireplace with Colonial
Revival mantel in the southeast corner. The east wall contains a

(see continuation sheet 2)
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triple window looking out onto the verandah. The archway between the
parlors can be closed off with a sliding door. The floors in both rooms
have parquet borders, and the walls and trim are painted.

To the west of the parlors, a corridor runs from the hall to the
dining room. It has the same wooden dado and wallpaper as the hall.
The old writing room on the west side of this corridor has been divided
into a ladies - .. © room and a storage room.

The north end of the corridor opens into a small rectangular hall-
way with a twenty-four by forty-foot dining room to the north. The
entire east wall of the room, which is slightly bowed, is covered with
wooden paneling. The other walls have a wooden dado of beaded vertical
boards with wallpaper above. Six cased beams run across the ceiling
from north to south. A double door in the east wall opens onto the en-
closed wing of the verandah, used as part of the dining room. A
fifteen-by-twenty-foot serving room off the west of the dining room con-
nects with the kitchen in the service wing. The small hallway adjacent
to the dining room leads into a room shaped like one-quarter of a do-
decagon. This was originally the small dining room, designed for winter
use, when there were fewer guests at the hotel. A bar is now installed
at the north end of this room, once used as part of the cocktail lounge.
Part of the ceiling here is of wooden latticework, while the polygonal
end of the room is all windows, overlooking the glazed passageway and
the rear courtyard beyond.

The first floor of the service wing is taken up mostly by the
kitchen. There are also some storage rooms, and a hall containing a
stairway and the refrigerator and freezer rooms. The second floor of
the service wing is divided into six bedrooms and two baths, while the
third floor has one large bedroom on either side of the stair hall.

In the main block, there are eighteen bedrooms, three semi-private

baths, two hall baths, and a toilet on beth the second and third floors
and five bedrooms, one hall bath, and one private lavatory on the fourth

floor. Four of the second floor bedrooms have fireplaces with nonde-
script mantels; the other rooms are very plain, with painted walls,
Queen Anne windows, and doors with transoms opening into the corridors.

The Greene Inn was operated as a hotel until about four years ago.
- The present owner has recently purchased the Inn from an owner who pur-
chased it in 1922. He plans to reopen the restaurant in May of 1976,
with renovation and reopening of the rest of the hotel to follow.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Greene Inn is one of the few structures surviving from the
period when Narragansett Pier was one of America's most popular and -
well-known summer resorts. The history of the Pier as a summer resort
dates from the 1840's, when.a few people from Providence came to this
tiny, remote seaport (founded about 1780) to enjoy its mild climate and
its sandy, gently-sloping bathing beach. These visitors had to board
with local residents, for at that time there were no hotels. The first
hotels, the Revere House and the Narragansett House, were built in
1855-56. By that time the village's reputation had already begun to
spread outside Rhode Island. In 1848 Rowland Hazard, owner of the mill
in the nearby village of Peacedale, had taken Joseph H. Dulles of
Philadelphia, one of his business associates, to visit Narragansett Pier.
Dulles was so impressed he reserved rooms at Hadwen's boarding house
for the following season. In 1856, Dulles returned with his family and
friends to stay at the Narragansett House.

Summer tourism rose from this modest beginning to become Narragansett
Pier's major industry. Between 1866 and 1871 eight hotels were built
here, catering to visitors from Boston, New York, Philadelphia, Baltimore,
Washington, New Orleans, St. Louis, and Chicago. In 1876 the Narragansett
Pier Railroad was opened, greatly improving travel accomodations: (before
that travellers had to ride nine miles by stagecoach from Kingston, the
nearest station). A casino and several more hotels were built in the
1880's, and some of the wealthier visitors built large summer "cottages"
on the road leading south to Point Judith.

The Greene Inn, completed in 1888, occupies the site of W. E. H.
Whaley's dwelling house, where Whaley began taking in boarders in about
1860. In 1880 he sold his property to H. W. Greene, who remodeled the
house and opened it as the Southern Hotel. 1In 1887 Mr. Greene and his
son Nathaniel had most of the old Southern Hotel torn down, whereupon
they began to erect a new hotel which was, in the words of a contem-
porary writer, '"...a decided ornament to the Pier." The new Inn was
designed by William Gibbons Preston (1844-1910), a prominent Boston
architect who designed the Museum of Natural History on Berkeley Street
(now the Bonwit Teller store) and the First Corps of Cadets Armory at
Columbus Avenue and Arlington Street in that city. Preston had already
built four structures in Narragansett, and was later commissioned to

(sée continuation sheet 3)
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build four more. The Greene Inn was his only hotel, however, and it

was different from the others at Narragansett. At the time of its
construction, the Inn was the only hotel at the Pier with central
heating, which made it possible for the Greenes to run a year-round
establishment. More important, it was much smaller and more intimate
than the other Pier hotels. In his design for the Inn, Preston was
trying, as reported in the American Architect and Building News, ''to
produce a hostelry promising some of the creature comforts so commonly
found in the smaller hotels of England and which the great caravansaries
lining our coast are the farthest possible from furnishing.'" Preston's
efforts were apparently appreciated by the public, for the Greene Inn
soon became the most desirable place to stay at Narragansett. According
to older residents, the Inn reached its peak of popularity in the 1920's
and 1930's, when a number of famous people came to stay there, including
Frank Murphy, U. S. Attorney-General during F. D. Roosevelt's adminis-
tration. In 1920 Nathaniel Greene sold the Inn to Charles Wescott, a
Wall Street investor, who in turn sold it to James Muldowney in 1922.
Mr. Muldowney ran the hotel for about fifty years, ceasing operations
only four or five years ago.

Today the Greene Inn is an important local landmark. Of the fif-
teen or twenty nineteenth-century hotels which once stood at the Pier,
it is the only one remaining. It defines the southern end of the old
waterfront hotel strip, with the Towers of the old Casino (a National
Register property) marking the other end about one-half mile to the
north. In spite of the chaotic streetscape between them, these two
monuments serve as a strong reminder of Narragansett Pier's heyday as
a summer resort for upper middle class families from the eastern,
southern, and midwestern states. The  Inn is also noteworthy as an
example of the work of a major nineteenth-century New England architect.
Most important, however, is the role this building plays in maintaining
the historic fabric of the Pier area. With plans for returning the
Greene Inn to its former use already under way, its value as a symbol
of Narragansett's interesting and glamorous past is greatly enhanced,
and makes the building's preservation that much more imperative.
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